

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

_____, Individually and On Behalf Of
All Other Similarly Situated

Plaintiff,

v.

ALIGN TECHNOLOGY, INC., JOSEPH M.
HOGAN, and JOHN F. MORICI,

Defendants.

No.

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

I. NATURE OF THE ACTION 1

II. JURISDICTION AND VENUE..... 3

III. PARTIES 3

IV. SUBSTANTIVE ALLEGATIONS 4

 A. Background..... 4

 B. Materially False and Misleading Statements And Omissions During the Class
 Period..... 5

V. PLAINTIFF’S CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS 10

VI. NO SAFE HARBOR 12

COUNT I VIOLATION OF SECTION 10(B) OF THE EXCHANGE ACT AND RULE 10B-5 FOR
MATERIAL FALSE STATEMENTS AND OMISSIONS AGAINST ALL DEFENDANTS
..... 12

COUNT II VIOLATION OF SECTION 20(A) OF THE EXCHANGE ACT AGAINST
DEFENDANTS HOGAN AND MORICI 14

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 15

DEMAND FOR TRIAL BY JURY 15

1 _____ (“Plaintiff”), individually and on behalf of all other persons similarly situated, by
2 Plaintiff’s undersigned attorneys, for Plaintiff’s complaint against Defendants (defined below),
3 alleges the following based upon personal knowledge as to Plaintiff and Plaintiff’s own acts, and
4 information and belief as to all other matters, based upon, *inter alia*, the investigation conducted
5 by and through Plaintiff’s attorneys, which included, among other things, a review of the
6 Defendants’ public documents, conference calls and announcements made by Defendants, United
7 States Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) filings, wire and press releases published by
8 and regarding Align Technology, Inc. (“Align” or the “Company”), analysts’ reports and
9 advisories about the Company, and other public information. Plaintiff believes that substantial
10 evidentiary support will exist for the allegations set forth herein after a reasonable opportunity for
11 discovery.

I. NATURE OF THE ACTION

12 1. This is a federal securities class action on behalf of a class consisting of all persons
13 other than Defendants who purchased or sold securities of Align between April 25, 2018 and October
14 24, 2018, both dates inclusive (the “Class Period”) and suffered damages as a result of the statements
15 and omissions alleged herein. Plaintiff seeks to recover compensable damages caused by
16 Defendants’ violations of the federal securities laws and to pursue remedies under Sections 10(b) and
17 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”) and Rule 10b-5 promulgated
18 thereunder.

19 2. Align Technology, Inc is a global medical device company engaged in the design,
20 manufacture and marketing of brand name Invisalign® clear aligners and iTero® intraoral scanners
21 and services for orthodontics, restorative and aesthetic dentistry. The Company’s products are
22 intended primarily for the treatment of misaligned teeth.

23 3. Founded in 1997, Align is headquartered in San Jose, California, and its stock trades
24 on the NASDAQ Global Select market under the ticker symbol “ALGN.”

25 4. The Company has two operating segments: (1) Clear Aligner and (2) Scanners and
26 Services (“Scanner”). For the year ended December 31, 2017, the Clear Aligner net revenues
27 represented approximately 89% of worldwide net revenues, while Scanner represented the remaining
28 11% of worldwide net revenues. Align sells the vast majority of its products directly to orthodontists

1 and general practitioner dentists (“GPs”), as well as to restorative and aesthetic dentists, including
2 prosthodontists, periodontists, and oral surgeons. The Company’s Clear Aligner operating segment
3 includes revenues from non-Invisalign brand aligners supplied to SmileDirectClub, LLC (“SDC”).

4 5. Throughout the Class Period, Defendants made materially false and/or misleading
5 statements, as well as omitted disclosure of material adverse facts about the Company’s business,
6 operations, and prospects. Specifically, Defendants failed to disclose to investors that: (1) at the
7 beginning of the year the Company changed its North American Advantage Customer Loyalty
8 Program by extending the discount qualification period from quarterly to semi-annual and created
9 additional incentive tiers which was intended to, and did, result in “higher overall discounts” for its
10 doctor customers and substantial reduction of the average sales price (ASP); (2) in Q3 the Company
11 initiated a new Invisalign product promotion that resulted in substantial reduction of its ASP; (3) the
12 promotions and discounts would materially impact net income as a result of reduced profit margins;
13 and (4) that, as a result of the foregoing, Defendants’ positive statements about the Company’s
14 business, operations, and prospects, were materially misleading and/or lacked a reasonable basis.

15 6. On October 24, 2018, the Company announced its third quarter 2018 financial results
16 and reported for the first time to investors that it changed its North American Advantage Customer
17 Loyalty Program and its new Q3 promotion negatively reduced the Average Sales Price by \$85,
18 which more than wiped out, not just partially offset, all increases in Invisaligns average sales price
19 (“ASP”) that the Company touted throughout the year. The same day, the Company also announced
20 that its CMO, defendant Pascaud, would “reduce his responsibilities and transition to a part-time
21 position.”

22 7. This news drove the price of Align shares down as much as \$87.71, or about 30%,
23 during intraday trading on October 25, 2018 on unusually high trading volume. The share price
24 continued to decline over the next two trading sessions, to close at \$217.94 on October 29, 2018.

25 8. As a result of Defendants’ wrongful acts and omissions, and the resulting decline in
26 the Company’s stock value, Plaintiff and other Class members who purchased or sold securities of
27 Align have suffered significant losses and damages.

1 **II. JURISDICTION AND VENUE**

2 9. The claims asserted herein arise under and pursuant to §§10(b) and 20(a) of the
3 Exchange Act (15 U.S.C. §§78j(b) and 78t(a)) and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder by the SEC
4 (17 C.F.R. §240.10b-5).

5 10. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this action under 28 U.S.C.
6 §1331 and §27 of the Exchange Act.

7 11. Venue is proper in this Judicial District pursuant to §27 of the Exchange Act (15
8 U.S.C. §78aa) and 28 U.S.C. §1391(b). Align’s principal executive offices are located within this
9 Judicial District.

10 12. In connection with the acts, conduct and other wrongs alleged in this Complaint,
11 Defendants, directly or indirectly, used the means and instrumentalities of interstate commerce,
12 including but not limited to, the United States mail, interstate telephone communications and the
13 facilities of the national securities exchange.

14 **III. PARTIES**

15 13. Plaintiff, _____, as set forth in the accompanying Certification, purchased and
16 sold Align securities during the Class Period and was damaged upon certain the revelation of the
17 alleged corrective disclosure.

18 14. Defendant Align is incorporated in Delaware, and the Company’s principal executive
19 offices are located 2820 Orchard Parkway, San Jose, California 9513. Align’s common stock trades
20 on the NASDAQ under the ticker symbol “ALGN.”

21 15. Defendant Joseph M. Hogan, (“Hogan”) served at all relevant times as the Company’s
22 President and Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”).

23 16. Defendant John F. Morici (“Morici”) served at all relevant times as the Company’s
24 Senior Vice President, Global Finance and Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”).

25 17. Defendants Hogan and Morici, because of their positions with the Company,
26 possessed the power and authority to control the contents of the Company’s reports to the SEC, press
27 releases and presentations to securities analysts, money and portfolio managers and institutional
28 investors, i.e., the market. The Individual Defendants were provided with copies of the Company’s

1 reports and press releases alleged herein to be misleading prior to, or shortly after, their issuance and
2 had the ability and opportunity to prevent their issuance or cause them to be corrected. Because of
3 their positions and access to material non-public information available to them, the Individual
4 Defendants knew that the adverse facts specified herein had not been disclosed to, and were being
5 concealed from, the public, and that the positive representations which were being made were then
6 materially false and/or misleading. The Individual Defendants are, therefore, liable for the false
7 statements pleaded herein.

8 **IV. SUBSTANTIVE ALLEGATIONS**

9 **A. Background**

10 18. Align Technology, Inc is a global medical device company engaged in the design,
11 manufacture and marketing of brand name Invisalign® clear aligners and iTero® intraoral scanners
12 and services for orthodontics, restorative and aesthetic dentistry. The Company's products are
13 intended primarily for the treatment of misaligned (i.e., crooked) teeth.

14 19. Founded in 1997, Align is headquartered in San Jose, California, and its stock trades
15 on the NASDAQ Global Select market under the ticker symbol "ALGN."

16 20. The Company has two operating segments: (1) Clear Aligner and (2) Scanners and
17 Services ("Scanner"). For the year ended December 31, 2017, the Clear Aligner net revenues
18 represent approximately 89% of worldwide net revenues, while Scanner represent the remaining
19 11% of worldwide net revenues. Align sells the vast majority of its products directly to orthodontists
20 and general practitioner dentists ("GPs"), as well as to restorative and aesthetic dentists, including
21 prosthodontists, periodontists, and oral surgeons. The Company's Clear Aligner operating segment
22 includes revenues from non-Invisalign brand aligners supplied to SmileDirectClub, LLC ("SDC").

23 21. Defendant Hogan has served as Align's President and CEO and as a member of the
24 Company's Board of Directors since June 2015.

25 22. Defendant Morici has served as Align's CFO and Senior Vice President, Global
26 Finance since June 2016.

1 **B. Materially False and Misleading Statements And Omissions During the Class Period**

2 23. The Class Period begins on April 25, 2018, when Defendants issued a press release
3 announcing Align’s 2018 first quarter (“Q1”) financial results, which stated in part:

- 4 • Q1 revenues up 40.8% year-over-year to a record \$436.9 million, and diluted EPS of \$1.17
- 5 • Q1 operating income up 59.2% year-over-year to \$98.2 million or operating margin of 22.5%
- 6 • Q1 total Invisalign case shipments up 30.8% year-over-year to 272.2 thousand
- 7 • Q1 Invisalign cases for teenage patients up 40.9% year-over-year to 69.1 thousand
- 8 • Q1 scanner and services revenues up 84.0% year-over-year to \$51.4 million

9
10 SAN JOSE, Calif., April 25, 2018 – Align Technology, Inc. (Nasdaq: ALGN) today reported financial results for the first quarter ended March
11 31, 2018. Invisalign case shipments in the first quarter of 2018 (Q1’18) were 272.2 thousand, up 30.8% year-over-year. Americas and
12 International region case shipments were up year-over-year 24.0% and 43.4%, respectively. Beginning Q1’18, Americas region includes North
13 America and LATAM and the International region includes EMEA and APAC. Q1’18 Invisalign cases for teenage patients were 69.1 thousand,
14 up 40.9% year-over-year. Q1’18 revenues were \$436.9 million, up 40.8% year-over-year with Q1’18 operating income \$98.2 million, up
15 59.2% year-over-year resulting in an operating margin of 22.5%. Net profit was \$95.9 million, or \$1.17 per diluted share, up \$0.32 over
16 the prior year.

17 Commenting on Align’s Q1 2018 results, Align Technology President and CEO Joe Hogan said, “I’m pleased to report better than expected
18 first quarter results and a strong start to the year for Align, with revenues, volumes and EPS above our guidance. Record Q1 revenues were up
19 41% year-over-year reflecting continued strong Invisalign volume across all geographies and customer channels, as well as iTero scanner
20 sales which were up 84% year-over-year. Q1 Invisalign volume growth of 31% year-over-year was driven by increased utilization including
21 strong teen case growth globally, and expansion of our customer base, which included over 4,200 new Invisalign-trained doctors worldwide.”

22
23 24. During the earning teleconference call held on April 25, 2018, Defendant Morici
24 stated, among other things, that:

25 Now, for our Q1 financial results. **Total company revenue for the first**
26 **quarter was a record \$436.9 million, up 3.7% from the prior quarter**
27 **and up 40.8% from the corresponding quarter a year ago.** Year-over-year revenue growth includes a five point benefit from
28 favorable foreign exchange. Clear aligner revenue of \$385.5 million was up 5.8% sequentially **on higher than expected volume.**

1 Year-over-year clear aligner revenue growth of 36.5% reflected strong
2 Invisalign shipment growth across all customer channels and
3 geographies and **increased Invisalign ASPs. Q1 Invisalign ASPs were**
4 **up sequentially approximately \$5 from Q4 to \$1,310**, reflecting
5 favorable foreign exchange and product mix, partially **offset by sales**
6 **promotions and revenue deferrals**. On a year-over-year basis, **Q1**
7 **Invisalign ASPs were up approximately \$40**, reflecting favorable
8 foreign exchange, price increases and product mix partially **offset by**
9 **sales promotions** and deferrals related to additional aligners.

6 For the first quarter, total **Invisalign shipments** of 272,200 cases were
7 **up 6.7% sequentially and up 30.8% year-over-year**, driven by growth
8 across all regions. For Americas' Orthodontists, Q1 Invisalign case
9 volume was up 8.5% sequentially and up 27% year-over-year.
10 For Americas' GP Dentists, Invisalign case volume was up 5.1%
11 sequentially and up 19.6% year-over-year. For international doctors,
12 Invisalign case volume was up 6.2% sequentially and up 43.4% year-
13 over-year.

14 25. On July 25, 2018, Align issued a press release to announce financial results for the
15 second quarter ("Q2") 2018, which stated in part:

- 16 • Q2 revenues up 37.5% year-over-year to a record \$490.3 million,
17 and diluted EPS of \$1.30
- 18 • Q2 operating income up 46.8% year-over-year to \$122.7 million,
19 operating margin of 25.0%
- 20 • Q2 total Invisalign case shipments up 30.5% year-over-year to 302.7
21 thousand
- 22 • Q2 Invisalign cases for teenage patients up 42.1% year-over-year to
23 78.4 thousand
- 24 • Q2 iTero scanner and services revenues up 60.9% year-over-year to
25 \$57.0 million

19 Align Technology, Inc. (Nasdaq:ALGN) today reported financial results
20 for the second quarter ended June 30, 2018. Invisalign case shipments
21 in the second quarter of 2018 (Q2'18) were 302.7 thousand, up 30.5%
22 year-over-year. Americas and International region case shipments were
23 up year-over-year 22.2% and 45.4%, respectively. Q2'18 Invisalign
24 cases for teenage patients were 78.4 thousand, up 42.1% year-over-year.
25 Q2'18 revenues were \$490.3 million, up 37.5% year-over-year and
26 Q2'18 operating income was \$122.7 million, up 46.8% year-over-year
27 resulting in an operating margin of 25.0%. Net profit was \$106.1
28 million, or \$1.30 per diluted share, up \$0.45 year-over-year.

24 Commenting on Align's Q2 2018 results, Align Technology President
25 and CEO Joe Hogan said, "I'm pleased to report another better than
26 expected quarter for Align. Our second quarter results reflect strong
27 growth across our customer channels with record volume in all regions
28 and in almost every country market. Year-over-year revenue growth of
37.5% was driven by continued momentum from Invisalign doctors and
increased adoption of Invisalign treatment for teenage patients which
grew 42.1%. Q2 Invisalign volume growth of 30.5% year-over-year

1 reflects increased utilization and expansion of our customer base, which
2 was over 50,000 for the first time and included more than 5,000 new
3 Invisalign-trained doctors. We also saw momentum from the iTero
4 scanner and services business which includes the continued rollout of
5 iTero scanners across Heartland Dental's installed base, as well as the
6 first iTero scanner shipments to China."

7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
26. During the conference call held the same day that the Company issued its Q2 results,
Morici stated, in part:

Due to Invisalign **ASPs were up sequentially approximately \$5 from Q1 to \$1,315**, reflecting increased secondary revenue and favorable price mix, partially offset by unfavorable FX and sales promotions. **On a year-over-year basis, Q2 Invisalign ASPs were up approximately \$30 reflecting favorable FX**, price increases and product mix, **partially offset by sales promotions and deferrals related to additional liners**. For the second quarter, total Invisalign shipments of 302,700 [ph] cases were up 11.2% sequentially, and up 30.5% year-over-year, driven by growth across all regions.

For Americas orthodontists, Q2 Invisalign case volume was up 9% sequentially and up 25% year-over-year. For Americas GP dentists, Invisalign case volume was up 8.6% sequentially and up 18.2% year-over-year. For international doctors, Invisalign case volume was up 14.9% sequentially and up 45.4% year-over-year.

27. At the end of the Class Period, on October 24, 2018, Defendants issued a press release to announce Align's third quarter (Q3) financial results, which stated in part:

- Q3 revenues up 31.2% year-over-year to a record \$505.3 million, and diluted EPS of \$1.24
- Q3 operating income up 26.8% year-over-year to \$125.2 million, operating margin of 24.8%
- Q3 total Invisalign case shipments up 35.3% year-over-year to 319.3 thousand
- Q3 Invisalign cases for teenage patients up 41.1% year-over-year to 98.5 thousand
- Q3 iTero scanner and services revenues up 79.1% year-over-year to \$78.2 million

Align Technology, Inc. (Nasdaq: ALGN) today reported financial results for the third quarter ended September 30, 2018. Invisalign case shipments in the third quarter of 2018 (Q3'18) were 319.3 thousand, up 35.3% year-over-year. Americas and International region case shipments were up year-over-year 29.1% and 45.6%, respectively. Q3'18 Invisalign cases for teenage patients were 98.5 thousand, up 41.1% year-over-year. Q3'18 revenues were \$505.3 million, up 31.2% year-over-year and Q3'18 operating income was \$125.2 million, up 26.8% year-over-year resulting in an operating margin of 24.8%. Net profit was \$100.9 million, or \$1.24 per diluted share, up \$0.23 year-over-year.

1 Commenting on Align’s Q3 2018 results, Align Technology President
2 and CEO Joe Hogan said, “I’m pleased to report third quarter results
3 with revenue and earnings above our outlook driven by higher than
4 expected Invisalign volume – offset somewhat by lower ASPs and
5 foreign exchange. We also had another record quarter for the iTero
6 scanner business with revenues up 79.1% year-over-year. Q3 Invisalign
7 volume increased 5.5% sequentially and up 35.3% year-over-year
8 reflecting strength across regions and customer channels, as well as
9 strong growth from both teen and adult patients. From a product
10 perspective, we saw strength across the Invisalign portfolio with growth
11 from both comprehensive and noncomprehensive products, reflecting an
12 acceleration in the non-comprehensive category related to expansion of
13 our product portfolio, as well as new sales programs and promotions
14 intended to increase adoption and utilization. We also saw continued
15 strength from international regions, especially Asia Pacific, which was
16 our 2nd largest region after the Americas in Q3.”

17 28. Following the press release announcing of Align’s 2018 third quarter (Q3) financial
18 results, also on October 24, 2018, Defendants held a held an earning teleconference call, during
19 which Defendant Morici stated in part:

20 Now for our Q3 financial results. Total revenue for the third quarter was
21 \$505.3 million, up 3.1% from the prior quarter and up 31.2% from the
22 corresponding quarter a year ago. Year-over-year revenue growth was
23 favorable in all regions. **Clear aligner revenue** of \$421.1 million was
24 **down 1.4% sequentially, driven by lower ASPs as a result of higher-**
25 **than-expected discounts** and unfavorable foreign exchange, partially
26 offset by increased volume.

27 Year-over-year clear aligner revenue growth of 25% reflected strong
28 Invisalign shipment growth across all customer channels and
geographies, and was partially **offset by lower ASPs**. As Joe mentioned
earlier in his remarks, Q3 Invisalign ASPs were down sequentially and
year-over-year due to a combination of promotional programs,
unfavorable foreign exchange and product mix, partially offset by price
increases across all regions.

In Q3, we offered a new product promotions designed to increase
adoption of Invisalign treatment and we saw much higher-than-expected
uptake on some of these promotions. In addition, **at the beginning of
the year, we created a more robust North America Advantage
customer loyalty program**, which has been very favorably received by
our doctors.

The **new Advantage Program** changed to a semi-annual discount
qualification period instead of a quarterly one, with additional tiers that
provide doctors with more incentive to move up the tiers by increasing
their Invisalign case volume. **As a result**, more doctors are moving up
in tiers and achieving **higher overall discounts than they were under
the prior program**.

Emphasis added.

1 29. Defendants at no point prior to the October 24, 2018 Q3 earnings call, which is nearly
2 a month into the fourth quarter (Q4) and with just over two months remaining in the full-year,
3 informed investors that “at the beginning of the year” the Company changed its Advantage customer
4 loyalty program or that the Company “offered a new product promotions” in Q3 that would result
5 higher overall discounts and a substantial reduction of the average sales price (ASP).

6 30. The October 24, 2018 announcement that the North American North American
7 Advantage Customer Loyalty Program and its new Q3 promotion negatively reduced the Average
8 Sales Price **by \$85** revealed for the first time that the promotions and discount more than wiped out
9 – not just “partially offset” – all increases in Invisaligns average sales price (“ASP”) that the
10 Company routinely touted throughout the year.

11 31. Defendants’ statements throughout the Class Period were materially false and
12 misleading when made because Defendants failed to disclose to investors that: (1) at the beginning
13 of the year the Company changed its North American Advantage Customer Loyalty Program by
14 extending the discount qualification period from quarterly to semi-annual and created additional
15 incentive tiers which resulted in “higher overall discounts” for its customers; (2) in Q3 the Company
16 initiated a new Invisalign product promotion that resulted in substantial reduction of the average
17 sales price (ASP); (3) the promotions and discounts would materially impact net income as a result
18 of reduced profit margins; and (4) that, as a result of the foregoing, Defendants’ positive statements
19 about the Company’s business, operations, and prospects, were materially misleading and/or lacked a
20 reasonable basis.

21 32. Defendants’ conduct artificially drove the price of Align shares to a Class Period high
22 of \$392.98.

23 33. After the truth was revealed October 24, 2018, the price of Align shares dropped as
24 much as \$87.71, or about 30%, during intraday trading on October 25, 2018 on unusually high
25 trading volume. The share price continued to decline over the next two trading sessions, to close at
26 \$217.94 on October 29, 2018.

1 **V. PLAINTIFF’S CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS**

2 34. Plaintiff brings this action as a class action pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil
3 Procedure 23(a) and (b)(3) on behalf of a Class, consisting of all those who purchased or sold Align
4 securities during the Class Period (the “Class”) and were damaged by Defendants’ statements and/or
5 omissions as alleged herein. Excluded from the Class are Defendants herein, the officers and
6 directors of the Company, at all relevant times, members of their immediate families and their legal
7 representatives, heirs, successors or assigns and any entity in which Defendants have or had a
8 controlling interest.

9 35. The members of the Class are so numerous that joinder of all members is
10 impracticable. Throughout the Class Period, Align securities were actively traded on the NASDAQ
11 and other exchanges. While the exact number of Class members is unknown to Plaintiff at this time
12 and can be ascertained only through appropriate discovery, Plaintiff believes that there are hundreds
13 or thousands of members in the proposed Class. Record owners and other members of the Class may
14 be identified from records maintained by Align or its transfer agent and may be notified of the
15 pendency of this action by mail, using the form of notice similar to that customarily used in securities
16 class actions.

17 36. Plaintiff’s claims are typical of the claims of the members of the Class as all members
18 of the Class are similarly affected by Defendants’ wrongful conduct in violation of federal law that is
19 complained of herein.

20 37. Plaintiff will fairly and adequately protect the interests of the members of the Class
21 and has retained counsel competent and experienced in class and securities litigation. Plaintiff has
22 no interests antagonistic to or in conflict with those of the Class.

23 38. Common questions of law and fact exist as to all members of the Class and
24 predominate over any questions solely affecting individual members of the Class. Among the
25 questions of law and fact common to the Class are:

- 26 • whether the federal securities laws were violated by Defendants’ acts
27 as alleged herein;

- 1 • whether statements made by Defendants to the investing public
- 2 during the Class Period misrepresented material facts about the
- 3 financial condition, business, operations, and management of Align;
- 4 • whether Defendants caused Align to issue false and misleading
- 5 statements during the Class Period;
- 6 • whether Defendants acted knowingly or recklessly in issuing false
- 7 and misleading financial statements;
- 8 • whether the prices of Align securities during the Class Period were
- 9 artificially inflated or artificially depressed because of Defendants’
- 10 conduct complained of herein; and
- 11 • whether the members of the Class have sustained damages and, if
- 12 so, what is the proper measure of damages.

13 39. A class action is superior to all other available methods for the fair and efficient
14 adjudication of this controversy since joinder of all members is impracticable. Furthermore, as the
15 damages suffered by individual Class members may be relatively small, the expense and burden of
16 individual litigation make it impossible for members of the Class to individually redress the wrongs
17 done to them. There will be no difficulty in the management of this action as a class action.

18 40. Plaintiff will rely, in part, upon the presumption of reliance established by the fraud-
19 on-the-market doctrine in that:

- 20 • Defendants made public misrepresentations or failed to disclose
- 21 material facts during the Class Period;
- 22 • the omissions and misrepresentations were material;
- 23 • Align securities are traded in efficient markets;
- 24 • the Company’s securities were liquid and traded with moderate to
- 25 heavy volume during the Class Period;
- 26 • the Company’s securities traded on the NASDAQ and other
- 27 exchanges, and the Company was covered by multiple analysts;
- 28 • the misrepresentations and omissions alleged would tend to induce
- a reasonable investor to misjudge the value of the Company’s
- securities; and
- Plaintiff and members of the Class purchased and/or sold Align
- securities between the time the Defendants failed to disclose or
- misrepresented material facts and the time the true facts were
- disclosed, without knowledge of the omitted or misrepresented facts.

1 make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not
2 misleading.

3 47. Defendants carried out a plan, scheme and course of conduct which was intended to
4 and did (i) deceive Plaintiff and other investors, as alleged herein; and (ii) cause Plaintiff and other
5 investors to purchase or sell Align securities at artificially high prices.

6 48. In furtherance of their plan, scheme and course of conduct, Defendants, and each of
7 them, took the actions set forth herein.

8 49. Defendants (i) employed devices, schemes, and artifices to defraud; (ii) made untrue
9 statements of material fact and/or omitted to state material facts necessary to make the statements not
10 misleading; and (iii) engaged in acts, practices, and a course of business which operated as a fraud
11 and deceit upon the purchasers and sellers of Align securities in violation of Section 10(b) of the
12 Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5.

13 50. Defendants, individually and in concert, directly and indirectly, by the use, means or
14 instrumentalities of interstate commerce and/or of the mails, engaged and participated in a
15 continuous course of conduct to conceal adverse material information about Align's financial well-
16 being and prospects, as specified herein

17 51. Defendants employed devices, schemes and artifices to defraud, while in possession
18 of material adverse non-public information and engaged in acts, practices, and a course of conduct as
19 alleged herein in an effort to assure investors of Align's value and performance and continued
20 substantial growth, which included the making of, or the participation in the making of untrue
21 statements of material facts and/or omitting to state material facts necessary in order to make the
22 statements made about Align and its business operations and future prospects in light of the
23 circumstances under which they were made, not misleading, as set forth more particularly herein,
24 and engaged in transactions, practices and a course of business which operated as a fraud and deceit
25 upon the purchasers and sellers of the Company's securities during the Class Period.

26 52. Defendants had actual knowledge of the misrepresentations and omissions of material
27 facts above.

